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UNITBD STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OP NEW JERSEY 

SECURITlES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION. 

Plaintiff; 
C.A.No._·_ 

v. 

BRIAN H. MARKOWITZ et al., 

Defendant& 

CONSENT or DEFENDANT BRIAN e. MARKOWITZ 

I. Defendant Brian H. Markowitz ("Defendant") waives service of a summons and 

the complaint in this action, enters a genenl appearance, and admits the Court's jurisdiction over 

Defendant and over the subject matter of this action. 

2. Without admitting or deo)'ina the allegations of the complaillt (except as provided 

herein in parqraph 12 and except u to personal and subject matter jurisdiction. which 

Defendant admits), Defendant hereby consents to the entry of the final Judpient in the form 

attached hemo (the "Pinal Judament") and incorporated by reference herein. which, among other 

thinp: 

(a) pennanendy restlains and eqjofns Defendant fiom violation of Sections 

1 O(b) and 14(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") 

[IS U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78n(e)] and Rules lOb-S and 14e-3 thereunder 

[17 C.P.R. §§ 240.lOb-S and 240.14e-3); 

(b) orders Defendant to pay ctisgorgement in the amount of $32,931, plus 

prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $2,640; and 
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(c) orders ~endant to pay a civil penalty in the amount ofS32,931 under 

Section 21A of the Exchange Act [IS U.S.C. § 78u-l]. 

3. Defendant agrees that he shall not seek or accept, dincdy or indirectly. 

reimbursement or indemnification &om any source, including but not limited to payment made 

pmsuant to any insurance ~Hey, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that Defendant pays 

pmsuant to the Ymal Judgment, regardless of whether such penalty amounts or any part thereof 

aie added to a cfistn"bution f\md or otherwise used for the benefit of investors. Defendant tbrther 

agrees that he shall not claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with reprd to any 

federal, state. or local tax for any penalty llDOUllU that Defendant pays pursuant to the Fmal 

Judpient, ieprd1ess of whether such penalty amounta or any part thereof are added to a 

distribution tUnd or otherwise used for the benefit of investors. 

4. Defendant waives the entry of findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to 

Rule S2 of the Federal Rules of Crvil Procedme. 

S. Defendant waives the right, if any, to a jury trial and to appeal tioJn the entry of 

the irma1 Judgment. 

6. Defendant enten into this Consent voluntarily and represents that no threats, 

offen. piomises, or inducements of any kind have beCn made by the Commission or any 

member, ofticer, employee, agent, or representative of the Commission to induce Defendant to 

enter into this Consent. 

7. Defendant agrees that this Consent shall be incorporated into the Pinal Judgment 

with the same force and dfect as if fully set forth therein. 
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I. Defendant will not oppose the enforcement of the P°mal Judpient on the pound, 

if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 6S(d) of the Peet.al Rules of Civil Procedme, and 

hereby waives any objection based thereon. 

9. Defendant waives service of the Pinal Judgment and agrees that entry of the Ymal 

Judgment by the Court and ftlina with the Clerk of the Court will constitute notice to Defendant 

of its terms and conditions. Defendant 1bdher agrees to pn>Vide counsel for the Commission, 

within thirty days after the F'mal Juclplent is filed with the Clerk of the Comt. with an aftidavit 

or declm:ation stating that Defendant bas received and read a copy of the Fmal Jndpient. 

1 O. Consistent with 17 C.P Jl § 202.S(f), this Consent resolves only the claJms 

asserted apiast Defendant in this civil promedins. Defendant acknowledges that no promise or 

representation bas been made by the Commission or any member, officer, employee. agent, or 

representadve of the Commission with reprd to any criminal liability dud may have arisen or 

may ariso from. tile Ca<:ts UQ.derlying this action or immunity fiom any such criminal liability. 

Defendant waives any claim of Double Jeopardy based upon the settlement of this proceedins, 

in.cludins the imposition of any remedy or civil penalty herein. Defendant fbrther acknowledges 

that the eourt•s entry of a permanent injunction may have collateral consequences under federal 

or state law and the mies and regulations of self0 regulatory organi7.8tions, liomsina boards, and 

other regulatory organizations. Such collateral consequences include, but are not limited to, a 

statutory disqualification with respect to membenhip or participation in, or association with a 

member o( a self-regulatory orpniu.tioa This stalUtory disqualification has consequences that 

are separate fiom any sanction imposed in an administrative proceeding. In addition, in any 

disciplinmy proceeding before the Commission based on the entry of the iqjunction in this 
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action, Defendant undersaands dud he shall not be permitted to contest the factual allepdons of 

the complaint in this acdon. 

11. Defendant understands and apees to comply with the tams of 17 C.F .R. 

§ 202.S(e), which provides in part that it is the Commission•s policy-not to pennit a defendant 

or respondent to consent to a judgment or oJder that imposes a sanction while denyina the 

alleptioas in the complaint or order for proceedings,• and "a retbsal to admit the alleptions is 

equivalent to a denial, unless the defendant or tespe>ndent states that be neither admits nor denies 

the alleptiona." As part of Defendant"a apeemem to comply with the terms of Section 202.S(e). 

Defendant: (i) will not take any action or make or permit to be made any public statement 

denyina. direCdy or indirectly, any alleption in the complaint or cnadng the implession that the 

complaint is without factual basis; (it) will not make or permit to be made any public statement 

to the e1fect that Defendant does not admit the alleptions of the complaint, or that this Consent 

contains no admission of the alleptions, without also statlna that Defendant does not deny the 

allep.tions; (iii) upon the ftlna of this Consent, Defendant hereby withdraws any papers meet in 

this action to the extent that they deny any alleption In the ~and (iv) stipulates solely 

for purposes of exceptions to discluap set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 

U.S.C. §523, that the alleptions in the complaint are true, and tbrtber. that any debt for 

disgcqement, prejudgment hWnst, civil penalty or oth.- amoums due by Defendant under the 

Ymal Judgment or any other judplent, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entmed in connection with this proceedin& is a debt f'or the violation by Defendant of the federal 

securities laws or any regulation or order isaued under such laws. as set forth in Section 

S23(aX19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §S23(aX19). If Defendant breaches this 

agreement, the Commiaioa may petition the Court to vacate the F'mal Judament and reatcn this 
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action to its active docket. Notbina in this parapaph atrects Defendant's: (i) testimonial 

oblipdons; or (h) right to tab legal or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedinp 

in which the Commission is not a party. 

12. Defendant hereby waives any rights under the P.qua1 Accest to .Jusdce Act:. the 

Small Business Regulatory En!orcement Fairness Act of 1996, or any other plOVision of law to 

seek tom the United States, or any agency, or any official of the United States acting in bis or 

her official capacity, dincdy or indirectly, JeimbulSement of attorney's Cees or other fees. 

expenses, or costs expended by Defendant to defend against this action. For these purposes, 

Defendant agrees that Defendant is not_the prevailing party in this action since the parties have 

reached a good faith settlement. 

13. In connection with this action and any related judicial or administndive 

proceeding or investigation commental by the Commission or to which the Commission is a 

party, Defendant (i) agrees to appear and be interviewed by Commission staff' at such times and 

places as the sdrequests upon reasonable notice; (ii) will accept service by mail or ~imile 

tnmmnisston of notices or subpoenas issued by the Commission for documen1s or testimony at 

depositions, hearings, or trials, or in connection with any related investiption by Commission 

staff; (iii) appoints Defendant's undersigned attomey u agent to receive service ot such notices 

and subpoenas; (iv) with lapect to such notices and subpoenas, waives the tmitorial limits on 

service contained in Rule 45 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and any applicable local 

rules. pmvided that the party requesting the testimonJ reimburses Defimdant's tmvel. lodain& and 

subsistence expenses at the then-prevailing U.S. Oovermnent per elem rates; and (v) consents to 

personal jurisdiction over Defendant in any United States District Court for purposes of 

enloz:cina any such subpoena. 
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14. Defendant agrees that the Commission may present the Final Judgment to the 

Court for signature and entry without further notice. 

15. Defendant agrees that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this matter for the 

Brian H. Mark tz 

On ~I~ . ,2014, ~(;A(\) f.l t\kt<vtl~apersonknowntome, 
personally appeared b fore me and acknowledged executing the foregoing Consent. 

Notary Pu · 
Commissio expires: 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECUR111ES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plainti~ 

v. 

BRIAN H. MARKOWITZ et al., 

Defendants. 

C.A.No._-_ 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT BRIAN IL MARKOWITZ 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant Brian 

H. Markowitz ("Defendant") having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's 

jurisdiction over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final 

Judgment without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to 

jurisdiction and except as otherwise provided herein in paragraph V); waived findings of fact and 

conclusions of law; and waived any right to appeal from this Final Judgment: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

Defendant's agents, servants., employees, attomeys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirecdy, Section 

IO(b) of the Secmities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") [IS U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule JOb-S promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.tOb-S], by using any means or 
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insttumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements Dl&de, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Fmal Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 14(e) of the Exchange 

Act (lS U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or has 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to know bas been 
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acquired directly or ~Y &om the offering person; the issuer of the 

secwities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such infonnation and its source are publicly disclosed by 

pres release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic infonnation relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

bu reason to know bas been acquired directly or indirectly from the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee, advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer. to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of secwities in the 

manner descnOed in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offering person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning, financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the· issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partn~ 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 
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planning, financing. preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to such tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

III. 

IT IS FURTIIER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of $32,931, representing proti1s gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the 

Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $2,640, and a civil 

penalty in the amount of$32,931 pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchange Act [JS U.S.C. § 

78u-1 ]. Defendant shall satisfy this obligation by paying S68,S02 to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission within 14 days after entry of this F'mal Judgment 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

fiom a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://www.sec.gov/about/oftices/ofin.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's checlc, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Brian H. Markowitz as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is 

made pursuant to this Final Judgment. 
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Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifying information to the Commission's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this F'mal Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and pxejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amowits pursuant to 28 U .. S.C. § 1961. 

IV. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incoiporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the widertakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, solely for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bank.ntptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defenda~ and further, any debt for 

disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 
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securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth in Section 

S23(a)(19)oftheBanknlptcyCode, 11 U.S.C. § S23(a)(19). 

VI • 

. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREBD that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule S4(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

~cedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this F'mal Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

Dated: @cL l . .2Y.S::-~ 
-------...-.-.-.,~..-c-----------H"---
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff; 

v. 

BRIAN H. MARKOWITZ et al., 

Defendants. 

C.A.No._0 _ 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT BRIAN B. MARKOWITZ 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and Defendant Brian 

H. Markowitz ("Defendant") having entered a general appearance; consented to the Court's 

jurisdiction over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final 

Judgment without admitting or denying the aUegations of the Complaint (except as to 

jurisdiction and except as otherwise provided herein in paragraph V); waived findings of fact and 

conclusions of law; and waived any right to appeal from this Final Judgment: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant and 

. Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and eqjoined from violating. directly or indirectly, Section 

lO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") (15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and 

Rule lOb-S promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.101>-S], by using any means or 
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instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national 

securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading; or 

(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

and Defendant's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or 

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or 

otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined fiom violating Section 14(e) of the :Exchange 

Act [lS U.S.C. § 78n(e)] and Rule 14e-3 [17 C.F.R. § 240.14e-3] promulgated thereunder, in 

connection with any tender offer or request or invitation for tenders, from engaging in any 

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative act or practice, by: 

(a) purchasing or selling or causing to be purchased or sold the securities 

sought or to be sought in such tender offer, securities convertible into or 

exchangeable for any such securities or any option or right to obtain or 

dispose of any of the foregoing securities while in possession of material 

information relating to such tender offer that Defendant knows or has 

reason to know is nonpublic and knows or has reason to know has been 
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acquired directly or indirectly from the offering person; the issuer of the 

securities sought or to be sought by such tender offer; or any officer, 

director, partner, employee or other person acting on behalf of the offering 

person or such issuer, unless within a reasonable time prior to any such 

purchase or sale such information and its source are publicly disclosed by 

pres release or otherwise; or 

(b) communicating material, nonpublic infonnation relating to a tender offer, 

which Defendant knows or has reason to know is nonpublic and knows or 

bas reason to know has been acquired directly or inclirecdy &om the 

offering person; the issuer of the securities sought or to be sought by such 

tender offer; or any officer, director, partner, employee. advisor, or other 

person acting on behalf of the offering person of such issuer, to any person 

under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such 

communication is likely to result in the purchase or sale of securities in the 

manner described in subparagraph (a) above, except that this paragraph 

shall not apply to a communication made in good faith 

(i) to the officers, directors, partners or employees of the 

offerina person, to its advisors or to other persons, involved 

in the planning, financing, preparation or execution of such 

tender offer; 

(ii) to the issuer whose securities are sought or to be sought by 

such tender offer, to its officers, directors, partn~ 

employees or advisors or to other persons involved in the 
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planning, financing, preparation or execution of the 

activities of the issuer with respect to ~h tender offer; or 

(iii) to any person pursuant to a requirement of any statute or 

rule or regulation promulgated thereunder. 

III. 

IT IS FUR.TIIER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is liable 

for disgorgement of $32,93 t, representing profits gained as a result of the conduct alleged in the 

Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in the amount of $2,640, and a civil 

penalty in the amount of $32,931 pursuant to Section 21A of the Exchanae Act [IS U.S.C. § 

78u· 1 ]. Defendant shall satisfy this obligation by paying S68,S02 to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission within 14 days after entry of this Final Judgment 

Defendant may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which will provide 

detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon request. Payment may also be made directly 

ftom a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at 

http://www.sec.gov/aboutloffices/ofm.htm. Defendant may also pay by certified check, bank 

cashier's check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, which shall be delivered or mailed to 

Enterprise Services Center 
Accounts Receivable Branch 
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard 
Oklahoma City, OK 73169 

and shall be accompanied by a letter identifying the case title, civil action number, and name of 

this Court; Brian H. Markowitz as a defendant in this action; and specifying that payment is 

m&de pursuant to this Final Judgment. 
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Defendant shall simultaneously transmit photocopies of evidence of payment and case 

identifyina information to the Comrnislion's counsel in this action. By making this payment, 

Defendant relinquishes all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such funds and no part 

of the funds shall be returned to Defendant. The Commission shall send the funds paid pursuant 

to this Final Judgment to the United States Treasury. 

The Commission may enforce the Court's judgment for disgorgement and prejudgment 

interest by moving for civil contempt (and/or through other collection procedures authorized by 

law) at any time after 14 days following entry of this Final Judgment. Defendant shall pay post 

judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. 

IV. 

· IT IS FURTHER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is 

incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Defendant 

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein. 

v. 

IT IS FURTHER. ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, solely for purposes of 

exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code. 11U.S.C.§523, the 

allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant, and further, any debt for 

disgorgement. prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other amounts due by Defendant under this 

Final Judgment or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree or settlement agreement 

entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by Defendant of the federal 
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securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set forth m. Section 

S23(aX19) of the BankNptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § S23(aX19). 

VI • 

. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DBCREBD that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this F°mal Judgment. 

VII. 

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule S4(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

~cedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 
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